UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.
GENERAL

Economic and Social
Council

E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
22 April 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 42nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 19 April 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai r person: Ms. ANDERSON (I'reland)

CONTENTS
I NDI GENOUS | SSUES

RACI SM RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, XENOPHOBI A AND ALL FORMS OF DI SCRI M NATI ON
(continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Comr ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 12555 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

| NDI GENOUS | SSUES (agenda item 15) (E/ CN. 4/1999/81-83; E/ CN. 4/1999/ NGO 65
and 73-78; A/53/282 and Corr.1 and 310; A/ RES/ 53/129 and 130;
E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 15 and 16; E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1994/ 2/ Add. 1)

1. M. van RIJSSEN (Netherlands), Chairman-Rapporteur of the open-ended

i nter-sessional ad hoc working group on a permanent forum for indigenous
people in the United Nations system introducing the working group's report

(E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ 83), said that the question of a permanent forum had been under
consideration for sone 10 years and indi genous organi zations - but also a
growi ng nunmber of Governnents - w shed to speed up the work. The working
group had made inportant progress in its five-day session, drawi ng on the
experience of two United Nations workshops and of conferences organized by the
i ndi genous peopl es thensel ves.

2. The principle of the establishment of a permanent forum had been largely
accepted, although some Governnents were as yet unable to adopt a fina
position, with a nmandate covering a w de range of issues. The forum should
serve as an advisory body to the United Nations system (indi genous
representatives wished it to have a policy-making role as well); should not
duplicate work done in other forums; should be an open assenmbly, with a core
group consisting of an equal nunber of governnent and indi genous
representatives; decisions should be taken by consensus; indi genous nenbers
shoul d be chosen on the basis of equitable distribution; and the forum should
be attached to the Economi c and Social Council

3. He suggested that the forum should be established after the Comm ssion's
fifty-sixth session, since that would provide the opportunity for its
effectiveness to be exam ned before the end of the International Decade of the
Worl d' s | ndi genous People in 2004.

4, M. URRUTIA (Peru), Chairperson-Rapporteur of the working group
establ i shed in accordance w th Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts resol uti on 1995/ 32,

i ntroduci ng the working group's report (E/ CN. 4/1999/82), said that discussions
at the fourth session had been far nore open and transparent than in the past,
whi ch gave rise to the hope that, even if no draft articles had been adopted,
sonme real progress was being made. Mre del egati ons had participated and
there had been greater nmutual understanding. The principle of the draft

decl aration had been accepted. All parties knew where they diverged; that was
the first step towards finding solutions.

5. The next session should concentrate on draft articles 15-18, on which
agreenent could be reached. Further work was needed on draft articles 1, 2,
12-14 and 44; in that context, he called for specific amendnents to be

submtted. A text nust be found that was as broadly acceptable as possible.

6. Cl oser contacts between Covernnents and indi genous representatives,
preferably in their own countries, would be nost useful. It was also
desirable to secure the fullest participation in the working group and he
therefore called on Governnments and non-governmental organizations (NG3s) to
support the United Nations Voluntary Fund for I|ndigenous Popul ati ons, which
provi ded financial assistance to enable the representatives of indigenous



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 3

comunities to attend the sessions. In that context, he noted that sone

i ndi genous representatives felt that the working group was not structured to
allow for the fullest indigenous representation. The working group was
clearly unable to make any change wi thout exceeding its mandate; but the
concern shoul d be expressed.

7. Ms. TAULI - CORPUZ ( Chai r per son- Rapporteur, Board of Trustees,

United Nations Voluntary Fund for Indigenous Popul ati ons) said that, although
smal | conpared with other United Nations trust funds, the Fund had rmade it
possi bl e for indigenous | eaders and activists to participate in the

Sub- Commi ssi on's Worki ng Group on Indi genous Popul ations. Wth the addition
of two new Comm ssion working groups, there were nore calls on the Fund:
travel grants had been made in 1998 to 50 representatives of indigenous
peoples to attend the Wrking Goup and to 25 others to attend the two
open-ended working groups. It was expected that the nunber woul d increase
in 1999, particularly if the draft resolution for a second session of the
wor ki ng group on the permanent forum was adopted.

8. The bal ance of contributions paid to the Fund by Governnments and

i ndi genous organi zati ons, anmounting to sone US$ 100, 000, would not be
sufficient to cover the grants envisaged for the year 2000. |In spite of what
had been achieved in raising the international community's awareness of

i ndi genous issues and views, there was still rmuch to do, including reconposing
the Board of Trustees to have nore indigenous representatives. An additiona
amount of at | east US$ 500,000 was needed to neet the increasing requests

for 2000.

9. Fol | owi ng the appeal contained in Conm ssion resolution 1998/13, the
Governments of Bolivia, Denmark, G eece and Tunisia had pl edged an anount of
US$ 158,000. She therefore appealed for further contributions to both the
Fund and the Voluntary Fund for the International Decade of the Wrld' s

I ndi genous Peopl es.

10. The direct participation of indigenous peoples in neetings having a
direct inpact on their lives and those of future generations was of
i nestimabl e i nportance. |If they made m stakes, they would have only

t hensel ves to bl ane; and any gains would be due to neani ngful partnership with
the Governnents of the world to ensure that justice, denmpcracy and sustai nabl e
devel opnent reigned in their comrunities.

11. M. MORALES MORALES (Member, Advisory G oup, Voluntary Fund for the

I nternational Decade of the Wirld' s Indi genous People) said that details of
the Fund could be found in docunents A/53/310 and E/CN. 4/1999/81. In 1997
grants, amounting to US$ 165,000, had been nade for 12 projects and, in 1998,
a total of US$ 139,000 for 13 projects in indigenous organizations and
conmmunities. At its |latest session, after considering 120 projects, the

Advi sory Group had recomended grants totalling US$ 150,000, to be paid once
sufficient resources were avail abl e.

12. The Fund was made up of voluntary contributions and the new
contributions received between the Goup's third and fourth sessions had not
been sufficient to cover the budget for such activities as a second workshop
for indigenous journalists or the two subregional seminars in Africa. A



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 4

further US$ 300,000 were required, in addition to the US$ 158,000 al ready
pl edged, and he invited donors to contribute to the Fund and thus support the
aspirations of indigenous peoples.

13. M. CHAVEZ (Peru) said that, as representing a nulticultural and

mul ti-ethnic society, his delegation had played an active part in the working
group on a permanent forum for indigenous people. Wile the establishnment of
such a forum had undoubtedly been accepted in principle, some questions arose
concerning three of its basic features.

14. First and forenost was the definition of its mandate. It should not
duplicate the work of other United Nations bodies and its functions should be
reviewed once the draft declaration on the rights of indigenous peoples had
been adopted. Secondly, its composition should be such as to all ow open

di al ogue on equal termnms between Covernnents and indi genous representatives, as
was al ready the case in the two existing working groups. Thirdly, it should
be financed out of the regular United Nations budget, which could be achieved
by elimnating expenditure on activities that m ght overlap with the functions
of the permanent forum

15. In view of the inmportance it attached to the adequate protection and
pronoti on of indigenous peoples' human rights, his del egation believed that,
at its next session, the working group should draw up one or more specific
proposals for the forumso as to enable the Comm ssion to reach a definite
deci si on.

16. Wth regard to the draft declaration on the rights of indigenous

peopl es, progress had been made over the past four years and the necessary
climate of confidence had been created. G eater flexibility was needed on al
si des, however. The willingness of the indigenous representatives at the
fourth session to consider any proposal to inprove or strengthen the text
shoul d pronpt Governments to redouble their efforts to overcone differences of
opinion. Since the principles behind the text had been accepted, its adoption
on first reading should not be delayed any |onger. His delegation would work
on any forrmula that net the legitinmate interests of States and indi genous
popul ations. It hoped that tangible progress could be submitted to the
Commission at its fifty-sixth session

17. M. LORD (Canada) said that his delegation intended to introduce a draft
resol ution authorizing the open-ended inter-sessional working group
establ i shed pursuant to Conm ssion resolution 1995/32 to neet for 10 days
prior to the fifty-sixth session of the Conm ssion. Hi s delegation agreed
with the H gh Conmi ssioner that the draft declaration on the rights of

i ndi genous peopl es shoul d establish m ni muminternational standards. He

wel comed the report of the working group (E/ CN. 4/1999/82) on the work of its
fourth session and urged that real substantive progress be made on the draft
declaration at the fifth session. He hoped that consensus could be reached on
articles 15 to 18 and progress made on other articles. To that end, his
Government woul d continue its dialogue with aboriginal |eaders and officials
in Canada and was prepared to participate in inter-sessional discussions with
ot her States.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 5

18. Hi s del egati on supported the Sub-Comm ssion's Wrking Goup on

I ndi genous Popul ati ons, which continued to have a crucial role to play in
facilitating dial ogue anong States, indigenous peoples and bodies of the
United Nations system It also supported the request that the High

Commi ssioner for Human Rights in her capacity as Coordi nator of the

I nternational Decade of the Wrld s Indigenous People should reviewthe

i npl enentati on of the Decade, suggesting ways and neans of pronoting
cooperation and partnership on the Decade thenes. It would be willing to
consi der convening a technical neeting on the basis of such a report.

19. Hi s del egation strongly supported the work of the Board of Trustees for
the Vol untary Fund for Indigenous Popul ati ons and the Voluntary Fund for the
I nternational Decade of the World's |Indi genous People and deeply appreciated
their willingness to seek creative and innovative ways of securing funds.

20. The establishment of a permanent forum for indi genous peoples in the
United Nations system woul d be a maj or achi evenent of the Decade, and it was
clear that it was receiving increasing support from States and from i ndi genous
peopl es. The mandate of the ad hoc working group on a permanent forum should
t hus be renewed.

21. A recent significant devel opnment which reflected the new partnership
bei ng established between the Governnent and abori gi nal people of Canada had
been the creation, on 1 April 1999, of a new territory called Nunavut,
conprising the traditional |lands on which the Inuit had lived for thousands of
years. The territory would be governed by a locally elected | egislative
assenbly, thus enabling the Inuit to take charge of their own destiny. It
woul d reflect the cherished values, ancient wi sdom and traditions of the
Inuit.

22. M. GALLEGOS CHI RI BOGA (Ecuador) said that the Commission's work in the
area of indigenous issues was of particular interest to his country, with its
| arge i ndi genous popul ation. The Hi gh Comni ssioner was to be commended on her
report on the inplenentation of the programre of activities for the Decade
(E/CN. 4/1999/81). It was unfortunate that work on the draft declaration had
come to a standstill, partly as a result of the unyielding position of sone

i ndi genous organi zations. Future work on the draft declaration should ai m at
securing agreenent on the basic thenes and definitions, while endeavouring to
reach a consensus on the | ess controversial topics. States and indigenous
peopl es must be actively involved in both those efforts.

23. The work to date on establishing a permanent forum for indigenous
peopl es had been positive. Future work nust reflect the fact that the

per manent forumwas to be a denocratic mechanismfor pronoting consensus
within the United Nations systemon topics relating to indi genous peoples.
The phil osophy of integrating States and civil society was fundanmental to one
of the system s ol dest organi zations, the International Labour Organization
(I'LO which offered practical guidance as to how the indi genous peopl es m ght
wor k denocratically al ongside States.

24. M. CHELIA (Argentina), having welconed the report of the working group
established in accordance w th Conm ssion resolution 1995/32 (E/ CN. 4/1999/82)
and commended the efforts of its Chairperson-Rapporteur, said that, in the



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 6

wor ki ng group's 1998 neetings, a constructive tendency had been observed in
the attitude of participating States which had made it possible to identify
clearly the obstacles to further progress. More inportantly, many State
partici pants had displayed a willingness to acknow edge the human rights of

i ndi genous peoples. The current regional negotiations on an inter-American
decl aration on indi genous peoples m ght serve as an exanple for the working
group in negotiating the draft United Nations declaration, and his del egation
believed that the working group's mandate shoul d be renewed.

25. H s del egation also wel conmed the report of the open-ended

i nter-sessional ad hoc working group on a permanent forum for indigenous
people in the United Nations system (E/ CN. 4/1999/83) and believed that its
Chai r man- Rapporteur should be authorized to hold inter-sessional consultations
and neetings. The working group should al so be authorized to hold one |ast
session with a view to preparing proposals for the establishnent of a

per manent forumthat could be submitted to the Commission at its fifty-sixth
session. The forum should function at a high Ievel within the United Nations
and report to the Comm ssion, ultimately replacing the Sub-Comm ssion's
Wor ki ng Group on | ndi genous Popul ati ons. Del egations to the permanent forum
shoul d be m xed, conposed of representatives of Governnents and of freely

el ected representatives of national indigenous popul ati ons.

26. In Argentina, consultations had been held in 1998 on the rights of

i ndi genous peoples as provided for in the 1994 Constitution. An Argentine

I ndi genous Peopl es’ Council had been established to represent indi genous
comunities before the State, and reforns had been inplenented at the nationa
and provincial l|evels which had enabled comunities to purchase or reclaim
land. Funds fromthe Inter-American Devel opment Bank, the European Union and
the Worl d Bank were financing programes intended to address the needs of

vul nerabl e popul ati ons and devel op protected indi genous areas. Lastly,

i ndi genous census-takers woul d take part in the national population census to
be conducted in 2000, in the hope of obtaining nore accurate data on

i ndi genous groups.

27. M. LEPATAN (Philippines) said that the National Conm ssion on

I ndi genous Peopl es, which was about to begin operation in the Philippines, was
one of a series of national bodies that reflected his Governnent's belief that
the establishment and strengthening of such institutions was the best way to
enhance human rights in the long term The National Comm ssion would

formul ate policies and programres in an area relatively unexplored in the
Phili ppines. Land rights and the provision of technical services to

i ndi genous conmunities in the area of | and managenent woul d be anong its
priority tasks.

28. The Comm ssion had quasi-judicial powers, with jurisdiction over al
clainms and di sputes involving the rights of indigenous peoples. It would
eventual Iy harnmonize its plans with other government progranmmes, particularly
in the areas of social reform health and education services, environnenta
protection and sustai nabl e devel opnent. It was expected that the Comr ssion
woul d be a major force in the country's econom ¢ and soci al devel opnent, and
it was to be hoped that, with experience, it would contribute to gl oba
efforts to pronote and protect the rights of indigenous peoples.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 7

29. Ms. PRIA (Mexico) said that the constant activity taking place in the
context of the Decade had pointed up the limtation of policies, nmodels and
programes for the devel opnment of indi genous peoples. The proposal to create
a permanent forum offered an opportunity to fornulate new policies and create
specific structures that would pronote the attai nment of the Decade's
objectives. Her delegation believed that the forum should be located in

New York and should report to the Econom ¢ and Social Council, with a mandate
and budget greater than those of a subcomm ssion. She wel coned the interest
expressed by indi genous groups in the forum

30. Her del egation believed that indi genous popul ati ons shoul d be
represented in international bodies, and particularly in the permanent forum
al ongsi de nati onal Covernnents, in order to ensure that they had a voice in
decisions relating to their devel opnent as well as respect for cultura
diversity. The manner in which the representatives of indigenous conmunities
were to be chosen nmust be clearly defined.

31. The tine was right for a newinitiative: GCovernnents and institutions
had a new awar eness of indi genous issues, and a number of financia

organi zati ons had issued guidelines for indigenous projects. Mst

i mportantly, the demands of indi genous peoples had undergone a qualitative
change, addi ng prospects for conprehensive devel opnment to the satisfaction of
basi c needs.

32. A process of legislative reformhad been initiated at the national and

| ocal levels in her own country with a view to accommodating the specia
features of indigenous peoples and conmunities. Special offices dealing with
i ndi genous peopl e had been established in the National Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion
and the Ofice of the Attorney-Ceneral, and many agenci es and progranmes
existed within the various States. The transfer of resources and functions
from State institutions to communities and traditional authorities had

i ncreased.

33. The National |ndigenous Institute, of which she was Director-General

had devel oped a programe to pronote the access of indigenous people to the
courts, provide |egal advice and defence and help with the rel ease of

i ndi genous persons fromprison. The Institute operated nore than 1,000 schoo
shel ters which sought to neet the needs of indigenous children whose own
conmuni ties | acked educational facilities and had provided significant funding
to soci al organizations for econom c devel opnent projects that were set up

and run by indigenous comunities. Radio broadcasts were transmtted

in 32 indigenous |anguages and training and cultural projects were also

or gani zed.

34. Her Government had nade a priority of defining a new alliance between

i ndi genous peopl es and Mexi can soci ety characterized by respect for the
legitimate rights of those peoples. The current generation of Mexicans woul d
have to take up the chall enge of overcoming the historic lag in the

devel opnent of the indi genous peopl es.

35. M. HLL (Observer for New Zeal and) said that there was a need for
greater coordination of United Nations activities in order to ensure that the
vi ews of indigenous people were reflected in the planning processes of the



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 8

various agencies. Wile progress towards agreenment on a draft declaration on
the rights of indigenous peoples had been limted, his del egati on had been
encouraged by the increased | evel of participation by States and the nore open
di al ogue between States and indi genous representatives at the working group's
nost recent session.

36. H s del egati on had al so been encouraged by the progress nmade by the
ad hoc working group on a permanent forum for indigenous people. His
Government planned to hold a workshop for government officials and Maori to
di scuss progress on both the draft declaration and the permanent forum

37. The M nistry of Mori Devel opnment was the | ead agency for inplenmenting
New Zeal and' s donestic programme of action for the International Decade. A
Decade Fund had been established to support projects for the devel opment and
pronmoti on of the Maori |anguage, and a m d-point review of national activities
related to the Decade woul d endeavour to broaden the range of activities to be
carried out in its second half.

38. One of the Government's key goals was to continue to build relationships
with the Maori and to inprove their social and econonmic status. To date,
historical clains under the Treaty of Waitangi, covering 53 per cent of the
country's total |and area, had been settled as had all historical clains
relating to commercial fisheries. Settlenents generally included a forma
apol ogy fromthe Crown for breaching the Treaty, the transfer of cash and
assets, and recognition of indigenous peoples' interests in particular sites
and species. Caimnt groups were no |longer required to conduct detail ed
research to validate their claimnms, provided they could denonstrate that their
ancestors had been prejudiced as a result of governnent action. 1In the

ci rcunmst ances, his del egati on wel conmed the intention of the Working G oup on
I ndi genous Popul ations to focus on the thenme of *Indi genous peoples and their
relationship to land” at its forthcom ng session

39. M. BRUUN (Observer for Denmark), speaking on behalf of the Nordic
countries, comended the Hi gh Conmm ssioner for Human Rights on her work as
Coordi nator for the International Decade of the Wrld s Indigenous People and
wel comed the fact that her Ofice was to organize a sem nar on draft
principles and guidelines on the protection of the heritage of indigenous
peoples. The Nordic countries considered that the establishment of a

per manent forum for indigenous people in the United Nations systemwas within
reach. The nature and | evel of the participation of indigenous peoples in the
forumwas a key issue and it was of the utnost inportance that their concerns
be taken seriously. Because of the nonmentum that had been generated, the

ad hoc working group must be given the opportunity to neet for a second
session to finalize its work.

40. The drafting of a declaration on the rights of indigenous peoples had
been under way for nmany years and it was essential to build on the energing
consensus anong Gover nnents and i ndi genous peoples in the rel evant working
group. That could be done by reviewing the existing draft with the ai m of

i mproving and strengthening its text and accommpdati ng the reasonabl e concerns
of the interested parties.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 9

41. Ms. CASATI (Observer for Paraguay) said that her country's Constitution
defined “Indi genous people” as groups whose culture pre-dated the formation
and organi zati on of the Paraguayan State. It recognized their right to
preserve and develop their ethnic identity, to establish their own systens of
organi zation and to obey their customary rules of comrunity coexistence

provi ded that they did not contravene fundanmental constitutional rights.

Under the Constitution, Paraguay was a nulticultural and bilingual country

wi th Spani sh and Guarani as the official |anguages. The |law respected the
cultural specificities of the indigenous people, and their close ties with
their places of origin were recognized by the restoration of their land, with
the hel p of the Paraguayan National Institute for Indi genous People.

42. Her del egation considered it necessary to establish a permanent forum
for indigenous people in the United Nations system and appealed to the donor
comunity to continue its contributions to the Voluntary Fund for Indi genous
Popul ati ons and the Voluntary Fund for the Internati onal Decade of the Wrld's
I ndi genous Peopl e.

43. M. ZOZULIA (Observer for Ukraine) said there was no consensus so far on
some inportant provisions of the draft declaration on the rights of indigenous
peopl es and the docunent had a general tone of isolationismand a |lack of a
spirit of cooperation between indi genous peoples, Governnents and the
international community. It did not differentiate between assinlation and

i ntegration, although no society or nation could exist wthout the integration
of its various ethnic groups. He could see no sign in the draft of a

wi | lingness to seek understanding in society and no reference to the

United Nations as a possible guarantor of the rights of indigenous peoples.

44, Anot her serious shortcom ng was the absence of a universally accepted
definition of the term “indigenous”. Use of the word “peoples” in the text
carried no inplications regarding the right of self-determ nation or any other
rights that mght be attached to the termunder international |law. The
wor ki ng group shoul d al so address the declaration's scope of application. To
ensure that it was universally acceptable, the text should be brought into
line with internationally recogni zed human rights standards and national | aws.

45. The decl aration should make a cl ear distinction between indi genous
entities leading a tribal way of life in isolated reservations and those that
were integrated with the rest of society. As it stood, the text was heavily
oriented towards tribal people. There were references throughout to

i ndi genous peoples as being distinct as well as clains for their preferentia
treatment, which would hardly contribute to inter-ethnic peace and
understanding in any society.

46. In Ukraine, where mllions of people, including indigenous ones, had
been di spossessed and forcibly deported half a century previously, some of
them and their descendants were returning home, and one of the nost urgent
tasks his Governnent faced was to ensure their snmooth and peacefu
reintegration into society, w thout infringing upon the rights of the other
resi dents.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 10

47. It was inportant to preserve a spirit of partnership and cooperation in
further work on the draft declaration and regional consultations should be
hel d between Governnents and i ndi genous peoples with the assistance of the

O fice of the High Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts (OHCHR)

48. Ms. AVILA SEIFERT (Cbserver for Bolivia) said that the Bolivian
Constitution recognized the country's multi-ethnic and multicultural nature
and i ndi genous issues were mainstreamed in its progranme of nationa

devel opnent. An agrarian reformlaw guaranteed the right of |and ownership

wi th due account being taken of the specific features of each indi genous and
aboriginal people, and a forest |aw guaranteed them the exclusive use of the
forests in their comunity |ands and the freedomto distribute those |ands for
fam |y and individual use.

49. I ndi genous communities were fully incorporated into Bolivia s |egal
political and economi c system wth the Constitution authorizing customary

i ndi genous | aw, provided that its application did not conflict with
constitutional provisions. The new Crimnal Code provided for interpretation
into the | anguage of an accused indi genous person and for the advice of an
expert on indigenous affairs. Oher |aws acknow edged the contribution nade
by i ndi genous people to the conservation and sustai nabl e use of biol ogica
diversity and to the protection of the environnent. Intercultural and

bi I i ngual education was al so provi ded.

50. Her del egation supported the establishnent of a permanent forumfor
i ndi genous people in the United Nations system and the el aboration of a draft
declaration on the rights of indigenous peoples. It also comrended the work

of the High Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts as Coordi nator of the Internationa
Decade.

51. M. VIGNY (Observer for Switzerland) said that States and indi genous
representatives alike should denonstrate good will and pragmati sm and
establish a permanent forum for indigenous people in the United Nations
system Anot her objective of the International Decade was the adoption of a
declaration on the rights of indigenous peoples, and his del egati on depl ored
the sterile debates being held on the supposed need for a definition of

i ndi genous peopl es, which m ght well prevent the achievenent of a declaration

52. There was al ready a consensus broadly covering the controversia

qguestion of the self-determ nation of indigenous peoples and what was required
was the application of the principle of subsidiarity, to enabl e indi genous
peoples to be integrated without being assimlated and, if they were divided
by an international border, to retain their |inks and cooperate with their

ki nsmen on the other side. Switzerland s own position, as a country made up
of a nunmber of minorities, was that respect for cultural diversity was a
factor not only of enrichnment but also of peace and cohesion. Specific
protection of indigenous peoples was required, as well as a recognition of
their rights.

53. Ms. TALVET (Observer for Estonia) said it was inportant to build on the
progress made by the ad hoc working group on the establishment of a pernanent
forum for indigenous people in the United Nations system Many partici pants,
i ncl udi ng her own del egation, were of the opinion that the working group



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 11

shoul d be reconvened to finalize its work and to submit a concrete action plan
for consideration and adoption by the Commi ssion at its fifty-sixth session
Active inter-sessional consultations mght facilitate the working group's
deliberations. The first half of the International Decade had hel ped to raise
awar eness and build partnerships; the second half should bear tangible fruit.

54. M. HEYWARD (CObserver for Australia) said that his Covernnent was
conmitted to achieving true reconciliation with the Aboriginal people of
Australia by the centenary of the Federation. Australia's indigenous

popul ation - currently 2 per cent - had increased in size by one third between
t he censuses of 1991 and 1996 and, as conpared with the overall popul ation
cont ai ned a high proportion of young people. |ndigenous people were nore
likely to live outside the big cities, to live in |arger households, to have
more children, to live in one-parent famlies, to be unenployed, and to enjoy
| ower standards of health and education than the rest of the popul ation

55. Those were the key issues being addressed by government policy. His
Government was currently spending $A 1.9 billion on indi genous-specific
programmes, with nore than 70 per cent of that figure being used to inprove
heal t h, housi ng, education and enploynment. There were currently nore than
7,000 indigenous students in higher education; nore than 33, 000 indi genous
people were participating in a scheme that allowed themto undertake paid work
on conmunity projects instead of receiving unenpl oynent benefit; and the
Government had commtted $A 25 mllion to tackling the issue of donestic

vi ol ence in indigenous conmunities.

56. Ms. NOGUERO. ALVAREZ (Observer for Spain) said that her del egation
firmy supported the establishment of a permanent forum for indigenous people
in the United Nations system before the end of the International Decade and
regretted that the Secretariat had not annexed to the report of the ad hoc
wor ki ng group (E/ CN. 4/1999/83) the docunent it had submitted in due tinme and
formfor official distribution. The working group should neet for a second
session to finalize its work. The permanent forum should be established at a
hi gh | evel and shoul d be subordinate to the Econom ¢ and Social Council. It
shoul d have a broad nandate and be financed fromthe United Nations regul ar
budget .

57. One of its main functions should be to define strategies for the

devel opnent of i ndi genous people, which would guide the fornul ati on of
policies and progranmes. It should also coordinate the activities of
Governments, specialized agencies and experts and submt recommendations to
the Council. Its nenbership should be mxed, and simlar to the tripartite
conposition of the ILO It should have an assenbly in which representatives
of Governnents and of indigenous peoples, as well as experts and
representatives of specialized agencies, could all participate. The assenbly
shoul d establish a council or executive comittee, as the sole decision-nmaking
body, with a |inmted nenbership bal anced between governnental and indi genous
representatives.

58. Ms. MOYA (American Association of Jurists) said that the struggles in
the Mexican State of Chiapas expressed indigenous resistance to the
deterioration of human rights in the region. Although the Government of
Mexi co had been requested by the Sub-Commi ssion at its fiftieth session to



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 12

attach the highest priority to conbating the inmpunity of perpetrators of
serious human rights violations, there had been an increase in the mlitary
presence in Chiapas, and paramlitary bands continued to carry out unlawfu
activities with inpunity. A nunmber of social and health problenms had appeared
in the indigenous community as a result of the war and indi genous wonmen were
often subject to sexual harassnent.

59. Since the Acteal nmassacre of Decenber 1997, the federal and State
authorities had created a climte of provocati on agai nst conmunities

synpathi zing with the Zapati sta National Liberation Arny (EZLN). An offensive
had been waged agai nst the autonomous nunicipalities, resulting in serious and
systematic violations of human rights, as docunented by the National Human

Ri ghts Conmmi ssion, by |local and federal deputies, NGOs and national and
foreign civilian observers. The offensive had generated new waves of

refugees, fleeing frompolice, mlitary and paramlitary persecution

Hundr eds of people had been taken into custody and deni ed due process.

60. The only possible solution to the problemwas the inplenentation of

the 1996 San Andrés Agreements on | ndigenous Rights and Culture, which had
been drafted by parlianmentarians representing all parties and were consi stent
with I LO Convention No. 169 concerning |Indi genous and Tribal Peoples in

I ndependent Countries. However, they had been severely restricted by the
unilateral bill submtted by the Federal Executive to the Chanber of Senators
in 1998. The dial ogue process had since been bl ocked.

61. She asked the Comm ssion to appoint a special rapporteur on the human
rights situation in Mexico as a matter of urgency. It was also vital that the
Speci al Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions and the
H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights should visit the country as schedul ed.

62. Ms. MLLER (Centre Europe - tiers nonde) said that the North American
Free Trade Agreenent (NAFTA) had been inposed on the indi genous peopl es of
Mexico with devastating results. The Zapatistas of Chiapas had refused to
accept such policies as |and expropriation, denial of autonony and
privatization of strategic resources, and demanded respect for their
col l ective rights.

63. The Governnent of Mexico had rejected the bill drafted on the basis of
the San Andrés Agreements by a Parlianmentary Comm ssion and was trying to

i npose a unilateral bill which would severely curtail the rights of indigenous
peoples. It was also waging a lowintensity war agai nst the Zapatista
comunities of Chiapas. Over one third of the Mexican arny was depl oyed in
the area and paramlitary groups proliferated, carrying out serious
depredations and human rights violations with conplete inmpunity. On

7 April 1999, security forces had attacked the comune of San Andrés, seat of
t he i ndi genous Autononmous Council and of the 1996 peace negoti ati ons.

64. In view of the Governnent's failure to comply with the recomrendati ons
of United Nations bodies and of the Inter-Anmerican Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts,
her organi zation urged the Comm ssion to appoint a special rapporteur on the
situation of human rights in Mexico. The planned visits by the Specia
Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions and the High
Commi ssi oner for Human Ri ghts should al so take place as schedul ed.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 13

65. Ms. CUNNI NGHAM (I nternati onal Human Rights Law G oup) said that there
was a clear-cut relationship in N caragua between fam |y viol ence and wonen's
earni ngs from enpl oynent, the earnings of wonmen subjected to domestic violence
bei ng much | ower than those of other wonmen. Data also reveal ed that the

i nci dence of viol ence agai nst indi genous wonen was hi gher than in the case of
the rest of the popul ation.

66. The effect of structural adjustnent nmeasures was a violation of socia
and economi c rights in N caragua and indi genous wonmen were the worst affected
group. Abuse of al cohol and drugs, unenployment and migration had accel erated
the process of social disintegration of indigenous communities and exacerbated
domestic violence. The |egal system and other structures of the dom nant
culture inpeded the access of indigenous peoples to justice, |and, education
health and credit.

67. She urged the Commi ssion to appoint a special rapporteur on the
situation of indigenous peoples. She also asked it to authorize the Specia
Rapporteur on viol ence agai nst women to visit Nicaragua.

68. M. AGUILAR (Foodfirst Information and Action Network (FIAN)) drew
attention to violations of the human rights of the indigenous peopl es of
Venezuel a, especially the peoples living in the Forest Reserve of |nmataca,
Canai ma National Park and the La Paragua river basin. Presidentia

Decree 1850 contained a plan for the exploitation of al nbst 50 per cent of the
| mat aca Forest Reserve by transnational mning corporations, ignoring the

exi stence of indi genous peoples there. The situation had been further
exacerbated by an electric cable project connecting Venezuela with Brazi

whi ch woul d cut through ancestral |ands, destroying water sources, plants,
animals, soil and other inmportant resources. The mning, tourismand forestry
enterprises to be supplied with electric energy would destroy |large tracts of
protected | and and forests.

69. The peaceful protests of the indigenous peoples had failed to elicit a
satisfactory response. They had filed petitions with the Supreme Court of
Justice and other bodies ainmed at securing recognition of their title to the

| and and the cancellation of the projects in order to ensure their surviva

and the conservation of the forests and other resources. They called upon the
Gover nment of Venezuela to recognize their rights under the Constitution; on
the Congress of the Republic to ratify ILO Convention No. 169; and on the
Suprene Court of Justice to rule as soon as possible on the applications to
have Presidential Decree 1850 declared null and void.

70. He urged the Conmi ssion to appoint a special rapporteur on the human
rights of indigenous peoples and a special rapporteur on the situation of
human rights in Mexico, particularly those of its indigenous peoples.

71. M. CHAKMA (Asian Cultural Forum on Devel oprment) said that

only 2,500 menbers of the Vedda community, one of the oldest in Sri Lanka, had
not yet been Sinhalized. They had been di spossessed of their natural habitat
by the Gal Oya irrigation project, the Mahaweli project and the Maduru Oya
Nati onal Park. President Kumaratunga's statenent in 1997 that the Veddas
woul d be allowed to continue their traditional way of |ife was wel come but
could not be put into effect without specific |egislation



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 14

72. Simlar policies by the Governnent of India had led to the
near -extinction of the Jarawas, the Sentinelese and the G eat Andamanese, and
to the conplete extinction of the Onges of Andaman and Ni cobar I sl and.

73. Hi s organi zati on was concerned at the |ack of progress in the open-ended
i nter-sessional working group to elaborate a draft United Nations declaration

on the rights of indigenous peoples. States participating in the proceedi ngs

nmust recogni ze the coexi stence of collective and individual rights in

i nternational |aw.

74. The Speci al Rapporteur on treaties, agreenents and other constructive
arrangenents between States and indi genous popul ations stated, in the unedited
version of his final report, that the presence of indigenous peoples in Asia
and Africa was “problematic”. Since the Governnent of the Philippines had
passed the Indi genous Peoples Act, Ml aysia recognized indi genous peoples in
its Constitution, Scheduled Tribes were recognized in India and nenbers of
tribal or sem -tribal popul ations were regarded as indi genous in Bangl adesh,
he appeal ed to the Special Rapporteur to delete the chapter entitled “Sonme key
poi nts of departure” fromhis final report.

75. Hi s organi zation urged the Governnent of Australia to inplenent the
recommendat i ons concerni ng aboriginal rights made by the Conmttee on the
Eli m nation of Racial Discrimnation at its fifty-fourth session in March 1999
and to suspend inplenentation of the Native Title Anendnent Act 1998.

76. Ms. ALl (Afro-Asian People's Solidarity Organization) said that the
Kashmiri Pandit community was threatened with extinction. The Pandits, the
original inhabitants of Kashmir, with a recorded presence spanni ng severa
mllennia, had a distinctive |anguage, culture and way of life and, unti
recently, had lived in harmony with the Muslimmajority. However, the entire
comunity had been forced by terrorismto flee to other parts of India and was
currently housed in nmakeshift canps.

77. The wretched conditions in which they lived had been anply docunented
but when they sought to return home, massacres were organi zed to deter them
Rel i gi ous fundanentalist bigots, financed and trained in a neighbouring
country and ai ded by international nmercenaries, were determ ned to cl eanse
pluralist and tolerant Kashmri society of all those who did not share their
narrow world view. She urged the Conm ssion to assist the nenbers of the

i ndi genous Pandit community to return to their hones.

78. Ms. GRAF (International League for the Rights and Liberation of Peoples)
said that, in Latin Arerican countries with |arge indigenous popul ations,

| egi sl ati on was designed to permt continued marginalization of those
popul ati ons and ongoing violations of their rights. The authorities concerned
were past masters at presenting thensel ves as bastions of denocracy.
CGuatenmal a's doctrine of State security had been taken over by Mexico to
justify the mlitarization of the States of Chiapas, Oaxaca and Guerrero so as
to crush the canpai gn of the indi genous popul ati on agai nst corrupt |eaders and



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 15

governnment al bodies. Mexican civil society and her own organization urged the
Conmmi ssion to appoint a special rapporteur to exam ne the situation there.

79. It was encouraging that the proposed establishnent of a permanent forum
for indigenous people in the United Nations system had been wi dely accepted
and she hoped that the representatives of the indigenous peoples would be able
to use the forumto express their views w thout being subjected to governnent
pressure and that the participating Governments would refrain from
mani pul ati ng the representati on of their indigenous peoples.

80. Her organi zation was | ooking forward to the organizati on by OHCHR of a
sem nar on draft principles and guidelines on the protection of the heritage
of i ndi genous peoples in accordance with Conm ssion decision 1998/ 103.

81. She asked the Speci al Rapporteur on indigenous peoples and their
relationship to land to submt a progress report to the Wrking G oup on
I ndi genous Peoples at its forthcom ng session and urged the Conmm ssion to
appoi nt a special rapporteur on the human rights of indigenous peoples.

RACI SM RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, XENOPHOBI A AND ALL FORMS OF DI SCRI M NATI ON
(agenda item 6) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/1999/16)

82. Ms. DIALLO (Senegal ), Chairperson-Rapporteur of the sessiona
open-ended working group to review and formul ate proposals for the Wrld

Conf erence agai nst Raci sm Racial Discrimnation, Xenophobia and Rel ated

I ntol erance, introducing the working group's report (E/CN.4/1999/16) said it
was the product of w de-ranging consultations involving States, the Commttee
on the Elimnation of Racial Discrimnation, the Special Rapporteur on
contenporary fornms of racism racial discrimnation and xenophobia, and NGGCs.
The two annexes contai ned proposals by the African G oup and by the

Sub- Committee on Racism Racial Discrimnation and Decol oni zati on of the
Special Conmittee of International Non-Governnmental Organizations on

Human Ri ghts.

83. The report dealt with substantive issues relating to the seven

obj ectives of the Conference, as specified in General Assenbly

resol ution 52/111, and contained a Chairperson's summary of the main points
that mght be reflected in the draft resolution on the Conference. The
wor ki ng group had agreed on the need to focus on specific activities that
woul d assist victinms of racismand racial discrimnation and to hold regiona
conferences to gather information on useful practices and on obstacles and
probl ems. The working group had al so agreed that nost problens of raci smand
raci al discrimnation could be solved through regional, national and | oca
action involving NGOs, cultural and sporting bodies and ot her conponents of
civil society. A special effort should thus be made to finance effective NGO
participation in the preparations for the Conference.

84. Since the Conference should not be viewed as an end in itself, the
wor ki ng group drew the Conmi ssion's attention to a nunmber of proposals ained
at enhancing the capacity of OHCHR by establishing a focal point both to
assist in preparing the Conference and to inplenent and foll ow up the

resul ting programe of action



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 42
page 16

85. Unl ess the Secretariat received a formal invitation froma prospective
host country, the Conference would be held at Geneva, but the working group
felt that its inpact would be enhanced if it were held in a country whose
deci sive action in the fight against racismhad given it symbolic status.

86. The CHAI RPERSON, said she assuned that the Comm ssion w shed to take
note of the working group's report (E/ CN. 4/1999/16).

87. It was so deci ded.

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




